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Harassment law Background: This in-depth analysis delves into Nepal's

remarkable evolution in combatting and preventing sexual
harassment  through legal provisions. The review
Sexual harassment meticulously explores the policies articulated by the Nepal
Law Commission, which have played a pivotal role in
shaping the nation's approach to addressing and
Workplace harassment preventing sexual harassment.

Objective: It aimed to explore key legislative acts,
amendments, and special provisions that set Nepal apart in
the fight against sexual harassment, emphasizing the
country's commitment to fostering safe and respectful
environments.

Methods: The website of the Nepal Law Commission was
the main information source, where 19 pertinent
legislation pertaining to sexual harassment were carefully
examined. Manual literature searches, desk reviews, and
narrative reviews were used to synthesize the content.
Both commonalities and distinct approaches were
highlighted through a careful review and analysis of the
specific sexual harassment-related laws of Nepal and
comparison made in with neighboring South Asian
countries.

Results: In comparison to South Asian countries, Nepal has
a strong legal system that reflects its unwavering
commitment to ending sexual harassment. It has a wide
variety of legislation that places an emphasis on
accessibility and inclusion. Nepal's legal landscape is
commended for its clarity, inclusivity, and proactive
measures, while challenges such as potential overlaps
among laws and the need for integrated coordination are
recognized.

Conclusions: The article emphasizes the continuous

Nepal legal framework

Women's rights
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evolution and refinement of Nepal's legal framework,
underscoring the importance of ongoing efforts, public
awareness, and international collaboration in shaping
effective and inclusive policies against sexual harassment.

1. INTRODUCTION

In recent years, Nepal has witnessed
a transformative  journey in  the
understanding and response to sexual
harassment. Nepal has established a robust
legal framework to address and prevent

sexual harassment, reflecting a
commitment to fostering safe and
respectful  environments. This article

provides a comprehensive review of Nepal's
legislative landscape by exploring the
nuances of Nepal's legal approach.
According to Sex Discrimination Act
1984, ‘Sexual Harassment’ encompasses
unwelcome and inappropriate behavior of a
sexual nature, creating discomfort or a
hostile environment. The term gained
prominence after Mechelle Vinson's 1986
case against Meritor Savings Bank, where
the U.S. Supreme Court acknowledged its
significance  in workplace  settings
(Vodanovich & Rupp, 2022). This recognition
marked a turning point, establishing legal
precedents that hold employers
accountable for addressing and preventing
sexual harassment. Since then, global
efforts have led to the formulation of laws
and gquidelines defining and addressing
such behavior, underscoring its significance
in  fostering  respectful and  safe
environments. The #MeToo movement,
gaining prominence around 2017, further
illuminated the prevalence of sexual
harassment globally, sparking discussions

about power dynamics, consent, and
cultural shifts (Johnson et al, 2019).
Ongoing efforts extend beyond legal

measures, aiming to cultivate respectful
environments. The evolution of the term
reflects a commitment to addressing and
preventing sexual harassment, with societal

understanding continually shaped by legal
developments and cultural movements.

In Nepal, combating sexual
harassment  requires a  multifaceted
approach, starting with the legal framework
established by the 'Sexual Harassment at
Workplace  Act, 2015' (Nepal Law
Commission, 20140). The  #MeToo
movement in Nepal, reflected in personal
stories shared online, plays a pivotal role in
raising awareness and challenging the
prevailing culture of silence. Education and
awareness programs, exemplified by UN
Women Nepal's initiatives (UN Women
Nepal, 2023), are essential for lasting

societal change. Government entities,
including the National Women Commission,
spearhead  efforts  (National ~ Women

Commission, 2023), while collaborations
with NGOs, such as the NGO Federation of
Nepal, and private sector engagement, as
seen through  Business for  Social
Responsibility (BSR) (Business for Social
Responsibility, 2023), contribute to a
comprehensive  strategy.  International
support, exemplified by UNDP Nepal (UNDP,
2023), adds a global perspective to the local
initiatives, collectively shaping a robust
framework to address and prevent sexual
harassment in Nepalese society.

The imperative need for this
comprehensive review lies in providing a
thorough understanding of Nepal's legal
framework against sexual harassment. The
primary purpose is to showcase the
country's commitment, highlight strengths,
identify challenges, and offer insights
crucial for ongoing policy enhancements.
This review aims to contribute to the
broader discourse on combating sexual
harassment, emphasizing the importance
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of  adaptive
frameworks  for
respectful societies.

and  responsive
fostering  safe

legal
and

2. METHODS

The methodology employed for this
comprehensive review involved a
meticulous  examination  of  Nepal's
legislative landscape on sexual harassment.
The primary sources of information included
the Nepal Law Commission website, where
19 relevant laws addressing sexual
harassment were thoroughly reviewed from
October to December 2023. Manual
literature searches were conducted using
reputable sources such as Google Scholar,
Pubmed, and Nepjol, employing keywords
specified in the abstract. The review design
adopted a desk review approach, utilizing
narrative review methods to synthesize

information. Additionally, policy
arrangements  pertaining  to  sexual
harassment in  Nepal's  neighboring

countries were scrutinized and discussed
based on contextual relevance. The
methodology ensured a comprehensive
understanding of Nepal's legal framework.

3.RESULTS
3.1 LEGAL FRAMEWORK FOR PREVENTING
SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN NEPAL

In establishing a robust legal
framework for preventing sexual
harassment in Nepal, a multitude of
legislative acts and guidelines play a crucial
role. The Crime Victim Protection Act, 2075
(Nepal Law Commission, 2018a), serves as
a cornerstone by recognizing sexual
harassment as a form of harm and ensuring
victim confidentiality, coupled with a
guarantee  of  compensation.  This
comprehensive approach reflects Nepal's
commitment to safequarding the rights and
well-being of individuals, acknowledging
the profound impact of sexual harassment
on victims and emphasizing the need for
redress.

Similarly, the Rights of Persons with
Disabilities  Act, 2074 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2017a), takes a significant
step in explicitly outlining protections
against sexual misconduct and abuse for
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individuals ~ with  disabilities.  The act
emphasizes  special  provisions  for
information and record-keeping,

underscoring the nation's dedication to
inclusivity and accessibility. By addressing
the unique challenges faced by individuals
with disabilities, Nepal aims to create an
environment that is not only legally just but
also socially equitable.

The legal landscape extends to
specific  situations, as seen in the
Emergency  Children's  Rescue  Fund

(Operation) Guidelines, 2067 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2010). Here, measures are
defined to prevent sexual violence and
exploitation against children in emergency
situations.  The guidelines  categorize
victims, enabling focused investigations,
and underline the importance of
maintaining confidentiality regarding sexual
and reproductive rights. This demonstrates
Nepal's commitment to protecting the most
vulnerable members of society, ensuring
that even in emergencies, the rights of
children are prioritized and safeguarded.

The Crime Investigation Procedure
(Amendment) Rules, 2075 (MOLJPA, 2017)
further enhance the legal infrastructure by
mandating physical evidence examination
through medical tests in sexual offenses.
This rule provides special rights for both
women and men, ensuring the
confidentiality of information related to
sexual and reproductive rights. This
meticulous legal approach reflects Nepal's
commitment to justice and accountability
in addressing the complexities of sexual
harassment and places importance on
scientifically sound evidence collection and
examination.

Constitutional and legal safequards
go beyond specific cases to strengthen the
overall protection against sexual
harassment. The Constitution of Nepal itself
ensures the right to live without
discrimination, secure maternity, and
reproductive health rights for everyone,
including extending these rights to girls.
Acts like the Health Service Act of Nepal
2053 (Nepal Law Commission, 1997) further
bolster workplace regulations by
establishing prohibitions against employees
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engaging in sexual harassment or domestic
violence. These regulations foster a safe
workplace environment, aligning with
Nepal's broader commitment to creating
spaces free from harassment and violence.
The Commission on the
Investigation of Disappeared Persons, Truth
and Reconciliation, 2072, (CIEDP, 2014)
grants special rights to sexual violence
victims, acknowledging the sensitive nature
of these cases. This includes compensation
and a safe environment for victims to
provide statements. The Compensation for
Victims of Torture Act 2072 recognizes rape
and sexual abuse as serious human rights
violations, providing victims with special
provisions and emphasizing the right to
privacy. By doing so, Nepal acknowledges
the gravity of these offenses and strives to
provide appropriate redress to the victims.
In addition to workplace regulations,
specific sectors are addressed with clarity
and determination. The National Sports
Development Act 2077 (MOYS, 2020)
unequivocally terminates any employee
involved in sexual misconduct, declaring
them unfit for sports-related positions. The
Privacy Act 2075 (Nepal Law Commission,
2018b) mandates the confidential
treatment of sensitive information related
to sexual matters, ensuring privacy as a
fundamental right. Acts like the Labor Act
2074 (Nepal Law Commission, 2017b) and
the Federal Parliament Secretariat Act 2064

(Government of Nepal, 2007) prohibit
employees from engaging in sexual
harassment, with provisions for their

removal if found quilty.

The Political Parties Act 2070 (Nepal
Law Commission, 2002) incorporates child
sexual abuse as a political offense not
subject to pardon, highlighting the moral
responsibility of political entities to address
and prevent such offenses. The Money
Laundering Prevention Act 2064 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2008) includes any form of
sexual exploitation, including child sexual
abuse, as an offense punishable under the
act. This underscores Nepal's commitment
to ensuring that sexual crimes, including
those against children, are treated with
utmost severity.

The Sexual Harassment (Prevention)
Act, 2071 (Nepal Law Commission, 2014q)
stands as a testament to Nepal's proactive
approach by  establishing  necessary
provisions for sexual harassment prevention
in the workplace. This act not only prohibits
any form of sexual misconduct but also
ensures  specific  consequences  for
perpetrators, including the vacation of their
position, thus providing justice for victims.

Nepal's robust legal framework
demonstrates a steadfast commitment to
combating sexual harassment,
incorporating a diverse range of laws that
prioritize  inclusivity and  accessibility.
Strengths, such as  clear  victim
confidentiality provisions and proactive
measures against workplace harassment,
are evident. However, addressing potential
overlaps among laws and enhancing
coordination for whole implementation
remains a challenge. Ongoing efforts to
raise public awareness and ensure effective
utilization of these provisions are crucial.
While Nepal's dedication to citizen well-
being is evident, continuous evaluation and
refinement are essential to meet emerging

challenges and strengthen the legal
framework further.
The policies concerning sexual

harassment in the neighboring countries of
Nepal (South Asia) are outlined as follows:

3.2 POLICIES FOR PREVENTING SEXUAL
HARASSMENT IN INDIA

Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and
Redressal) Act, 2013 (Ministry of Law &
Justice, 2013): India has a dedicated act
addressing workplace sexual harassment,
emphasizing the establishment of Internal
Complaints Committees (ICCs) in
organizations.

Protection of Children from Sexual
Offences (POCSO) Act, 2012: While primarily
focusing on child sexual abuse, this act

outlines stringent measures for the
protection of children against sexual
offenses.

Criminal Law (Amendment) Act,

2013 (Ministry of Law & Justice, 2013b):
This amendment introduced changes to the
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Indian  Penal
definitions and
sexual offenses.

Code, including broader
increased penalties for

3.3 POLICIES FOR PREVENTING SEXUAL
HARASSMENT IN PAKISTAN

Protection against Harassment of
Women at the Workplace Act, 2010
(Gazette of Pakistan, 2010): Pakistan, similar
to India, has a dedicated act focusing on
workplace harassment. It establishes
Inquiry Committees and emphasizes a safe
and enabling environment for women.

Criminal Law (Amendment) Act,
2016 (MoHR, 2016): This amendment
introduced changes to the Pakistan Penal
Code, addressing sexual offenses and
providing increased penalties for certain
crimes.

3.4 POLICIES FOR PREVENTING SEXUAL
HARASSMENT IN BANGLADESH

Sexual Harassment and Protection
of Women and Children (Prevention) Act,
2009 (MOWCA, 2009): Bangladesh's act
addresses sexual harassment at workplaces
and other institutions, outlining preventive
measures and the formation of complaint
committees.

The Nari O ShishuNirjatan Daman
Ain, 2000 (Ministry of Law, 2000): While not
solely focused on sexual harassment, this
law in Bangladesh addresses various forms
of violence against women and children,
including provisions related to sexual
offenses.

3.5 POLICIES FOR PREVENTING SEXUAL
HARASSMENT IN SRI LANKA

Protection against Sexual
Harassment in the Workplace Act, 2015: Sri
Lanka's legislation on workplace sexual
harassment establishes procedures for
complaints and investigations.

The Penal Code (Amendment) Act,
No. 22 of 1995 (Penal Code, 1995):
Amendments to the Penal Code address
sexual offenses and prescribe penalties for
such crimes.
3.6 POLICIES FOR PREVENTING SEXUAL
HARASSMENT IN BHUTAN

Bhutan Information,
Communications and Media Act, 2006
(National Council of Bhutan, 2006): While
not exclusively focused on  sexual
harassment, it includes provisions related to
media ethics, which indirectly contribute to
addressing harassment concerns.

Bhutan Penal Code, 2004 (Royal
Government of Bhutan, 2004): The Penal
Code includes sections on sexual offenses,
defining crimes and specifying penalties.

4. DISCUSSION

This discussion provides a nuanced
exploration of sexual harassment policies in
South Asian countries, centering on Nepal's
distinctive approach. The primary focus is
on Nepal's sexual harassment related laws
in comparison to neighboring countries,
emphasizing the policy landscape's key
elements and variations.

Analyzing Nepal's legal framework
against sexual harassment in comparison
to other South Asian countries reveals both
shared commitments and distinctive
features. All nations in the region share a

dedicated commitment to combating
sexual harassment  through  specific/
legislative  measures. The international

context, as reflected in the International
Labor Organization's (ILO) efforts and the
global impact of the #MeToo movement,
sets a broader stage for understanding how
nations address this pervasive issue. The
legal provisions in Nepal, supported by acts
such as the Sexual Harassment (Prevention)
Act, 2071 (Nepal Law Commission, 2014b),
showcase a distinctive approach with clear,
comprehensive  policies and  stringent
consequences for offenders, reflecting a
versatile and robust strategy.

The  global  commitment to
addressing sexual harassment is
underscored by the Sustainable

Development Goals (SDGs) adopted by all
193 United Nations member states in 2015.
SDG 5 emphasizes eliminating gender-
based violence, while SDG 8 focuses on
achieving decent work for both women and
men (UN, 2016). This global dedication
aligns with the efforts of South Asian
countries, including Nepal, to combat sexual
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harassment within their respective legal
frameworks.

The #MeToo movement, which
gained global momentum in 2017, brought
heightened attention to the issue of sexual
harassment. Trending in over 85 countries
within  just 10 days, this movement
prompted discussions worldwide, leading to
proposals for stricter regulations and
improved enforcement of existing laws.
Two years later, the International Labor
Organization (ILO) took a significant step by
enacting a long-awaited international
agreement addressing workplace sexual
harassment (Heymann et al., 2023). This
global perspective highlights the
interconnectedness of efforts to combat
sexual harassment and the need for
comprehensive legal frameworks.

Nepal's Legal Landscape: Embedded
in Nepal's legal framework against sexual

harassment is the Sexual Harassment
(Prevention) Act, 2071 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2014a), exemplifying the

nation's commitment to addressing this
issue comprehensively. This legislation
explicitly prohibits all forms of sexual
misconduct within the workplace and
ensures  specific  consequences  for
offenders, including the vacation of the
perpetrator's position, emphasizing the
severity of these offenses. Nepal's policy
stands out for its clarity,
comprehensiveness, and strict measures
against sexual misconduct in professional
settings. In this specific context, (Paudel,
2023) highlights the gravity of these
offenses and advocate for robust measures
to prevent sexual harassment in the
workplace, forming a crucial aspect of

Nepal's legal landscape against such
misconduct.
When  comparing the  sexual

harassment policies of Nepal and Indig,
both nations prioritize addressing workplace
harassment by  establishing  Internal
Complaints Committees (ICCs). In Indiq, the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act,
2013 (The Gazette of India, 2013), places a
significant emphasis on creating safe
working environments for women, aligning
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with constitutional principles of equality
(Gupta, & Garg, 2020). Conversely, Nepal's
policy sets itself apart by explicitly
delineating consequences for offenders,
establishing a more robust deterrent
against sexual misconduct. This distinct
approach underscores Nepal's dedication to
curbing harassment and fostering a secure
workplace environment through stringent
measures, potentially serving as a model for
comprehensive  anti-sexual harassment
frameworks. Similarly, the majority of
countries, addresses this issue discreetly
within its legal framework (ILO Regional
Office for Asia & the Pacific, 2001).

In the realm of Nepal's legal
framework against sexual harassment, a
comparative analysis with neighboring
countries reveals notable distinctions. While
Bangladesh's  Sexual Harassment and
Protection of Women and Children
(Prevention) Act, 2009 (MOWCA, 2009),
extends its reach beyond workplaces to
include  various  institutions,  Nepal's
approach stands out for its versatility and
stringency. The comprehensive nature of
Nepal's framework, encompassing diverse
sectors and outlining explicit consequences
for offenders, reflects a commitment to a
more adaptable and rigorous strategy. Sri
Lanka's  Protection  Against  Sexual
Harassment in the Workplace Act, 2015
(Government of Srilanka, 2015), focuses
primarily on workplace sexual harassment.
In contrast, Nepal's policy demonstrates a
broader  scope, addressing  sexual
misconduct in emergencies, sports, and
specific sectors, showcasing a dedication to
creating harassment-free spaces across
various contexts. Bhutan's Information,
Communications and Media Act, 2006
(Government of Bhutan, 2006), indirectly
addresses harassment concerns in the
media industry. Nevertheless, Nepal's
policy, with its explicit consequences for
offenders, aligns more closely with a
comprehensive commitment to preventing
sexual harassment across diverse sectors.

Shared Commitments in South Asia:
All South Asian countries, including Nepal,
share a commitment to combat sexual
harassment through specific legislation. In
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India, the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and
Redressal) Act, 2013 (The Gazette of Indiq,
2013), emphasizes the establishment of
Internal Complaints Committees (ICCs) in
organizations. Pakistan, similar to India, has
a dedicated act focusing on workplace
harassment  the  Protection  against
Harassment of Women at the Workplace
Act, 2010 (The Gazette of Pakistan, 2010)

establishing  Inquiry Committees and
emphasizing a safe and  enabling
environment for women. Bangladesh's

Harassment and Protection of
Women and Children (Prevention) Act,
2009, addresses sexual harassment at
workplaces and other institutions, outlining
preventive measures and the formation of
complaint ~ committees.  Sri Lanka's
Protection against Sexual Harassment in
the Workplace Act, 2015, focuses primarily
on  workplace  sexual  harassment,
establishing procedures for complaints and
investigations.

Distinctive Features of Nepal's Legal
Framework: Nepal distinguishes itself with a
clear, comprehensive  approach  to
combating sexual harassment. The Crime
Victim Protection Act, 2075 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2018) , serves as d
cornerstone by  recognizing  sexual
harassment as a form of harm and ensuring
victim confidentiality, coupled with a
guarantee of compensation. Similarly, the
Rights of Persons with Disabilities Act, 2074,
takes a significant step in explicitly outlining
protections against sexual misconduct and
abuse for individuals with disabilities. The
legal landscape extends to specific
situations, as seen in the Emergency
Children's  Rescue  Fund  (Operation)
Guidelines, 2067, where measures are
defined to prevent sexual violence and
exploitation against children in emergency

Sexual

situations.  The  Crime  Investigation
Procedure (Amendment) Rules, 2075,
enhance the legal infrastructure by

mandating physical evidence examination
through medical tests in sexual offenses.
Constitutional and legal safeguards go
beyond specific cases to strengthen overall
protection against sexual harassment.
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In addition to workplace regulations,
specific sectors are addressed with clarity
and determination. The National Sports
Development Act 2048 (Nepal Law
Commission,  2048) unequivocally
terminates any employee involved in sexual
misconduct, declaring them unfit for sports-
related positions. The Privacy Act 2075
(Nepal Law Commission, 2018b) mandates
the confidential treatment of sensitive
information related to sexual matters,
ensuring privacy as a fundamental right.
Acts like the Labor Act 2074 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2017b) and the Federal
Parliament Secretariat Act 2064 (Federal
Parliament, 2064) prohibit employees from
engaging in sexual harassment, with
provisions for their removal if found guilty.
The Political Parties Act 2070 (Nepal Law
Commission, 2058) incorporates child
sexual abuse as a political offense not
subject to pardon, highlighting the moral
responsibility of political entities to address
and prevent such offenses.

A commonality exists in the
dedication of all nations to combat sexual
harassment through specific legislation,
particularly with a focus on workplace
issues. However, Nepal stands out with its
clear, comprehensive policies and stringent
consequences for offenders, showcasing a
versatile and robust approach. Specific
challenges and opportunities within Nepal's
framework include addressing potential

legal overlaps among countries,
emphasizing the need for enhanced
coordination. Ensuring effective public

awareness and utilization of legal provisions
is crucial for success, with individual
awareness being vital for reporting
incidents and seeking redress. Recognizing
the evolving nature of the issue, Nepal, like
other South Asian countries, demonstrates
a commitment to continuous evaluation
and refinement of policies to effectively
address emerging challenges within its
unique context.

Within the context of Nepal's legal
framework against sexual harassment, the
pertinent Act emerges as a robust structure,
placing a distinct emphasis on workplace
regulations and extending its purview to
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specific scenarios like emergencies, sports,
and various  sectors. The  explicit
consequences prescribed for offenders not
only function as punitive measures but also
act as a potent deterrent, fostering a safer
environment and establishing formidable
legal barriers against sexual misconduct.
Addressing the potential overlaps among
laws and ensuring seamless coordination
for effective implementation are imperative
considerations to fortify Nepal's legal
framework. Ongoing initiatives, including
heightened public awareness, maximizing
the utilization of provisions, and fostering
collaborative efforts, are vital for the
continual evolution of Nepal's policies. The
proactive  approach and  unwavering
commitment to citizen well-being exhibited
by Nepal provide valuable insights for
ongoing regional discussions and potential
enhancements to sexual harassment
policies.

5. CONCLUSIONS

Nepal has made significant strides in
establishing a robust legal framework to
combat sexual harassment, exemplifying a
steadfast commitment to creating safe and
respectful environments. The
comprehensive  review highlights the
strength of Nepal's legislative landscape,
addressing sexual misconduct not only in
workplaces but also in specific contexts
such as emergencies, sports, and various
sectors. The country's proactive approach,
marked by explicit provisions and
consequences for offenders, sets it apart in
the  South  Asian  region. However,
challenges  remain,  particularly  in
addressing potential overlaps among laws
and ensuring unified coordination for
effective  implementation. As  Nepal
continues its commitment to combating
sexual harassment, ongoing efforts in
raising public awareness, maximizing the
utilization of provisions, and fostering
collaboration are essential for the
continuous evolution and refinement of its
legal framework.

In the broader South Asian context,
the comparative analysis reveals shared
commitments across countries,  with

dedicated legislation, a focus on workplace
harassment, and amendments to
strengthen legal measures. The discussion
highlights the need for continuous
evaluation and refinement to address
emerging challenges collectively. Nepal's
proactive stance and commitment to
citizen well-being offer valuable insights for
regional discussions, emphasizing the
importance of adaptive and responsive
legal  frameworks. As  the  region
collaboratively navigates the complexities
of sexual harassment, the journey towards
fostering safe and respectful societies
requires sustained efforts, awareness, and
international  collaboration to  shape
effective and inclusive policies.

6. DECLARATION
Conflicts of Interest

None.
Funding

None.
Authors’ Contributions

TS initiated the idea and wrote the
paper. The literature review and discourse
were  collaboratively undertaken  with
contributions from BA, MP, RS, and TS. BA, in
addition to playing a pivotal role in editing,
also managed the communication with the
publication processes. The final draft, which
will be published, has received approval
from each author in unanimity.

AUTHOR AFFILIATIONS

Tribhuwon Sharma

Central Department of Education, Tribhuvan
University

Kathmandu, Nepal

Bhagwan Aryal

Central Department of Education, Tribhuvan
University

Kathmandu, Nepal

Mahesh Pokhrel

Central Department of Education, Tribhuvan
University, Kathmandu, Nepal
maheshpokhrel61@gmail.com

Roselini Shrestha
Central Department of Education, Tribhuvan
University



Sharma et al. International Journal of MMC DOI: 10.3126/irjmmc.v5i1.63084 107

Kathmandu, Nepal
roselinishrestha@gmail.com

REFERENCES

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Business for Social Responsibility. (2023).
Sustainable Business Network and Consultancy
| BSR. https://www.bsr.org/en/

CIEDP. (2014). The Enforced Disappearances
Enquiry, Truth and Reconciliation Commission
Act, 2071 (2014) - Suar wifws =fewt SAfA ST,
https://ciedp.gov.np/download/the-enforced-
disappearances-enquiry-truth-and-
reconciliation-commission-act-2071-2014/
Federal Parliament. (2064). FPS ACT 2064.
https://na.parliament.gov.np/en/publication/15
75184144

Gazette of Pakistan. (2010). [THE PROTECTION
AGAINST HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE
WORKPLACE ACT 2010].

Government of Bhutan. (2006). BHUTAN
INFORMATION, COMMUNICATIONS AND MEDIA
ACT 2006.
http://www.asianlii.org/bt/legis/laws/bicama20
06402/

Government of Nepal. (2007). FPS ACT 2064.
https://hr.parliament.gov.np/en/publication/15
75184144

Government of Srilanka. (2015). Policy Against
Sexual Harassment and Procedural Steps for
Enforcement | University of Colombo, Sri Lanka.
https://cmb.ac.lk/policy-against-sexual-
harassment

Johnson, S., Keplinger, K., Kirk, J., & Barnes, L.
(2019). Has Sexual Harassment at Work
Decreased Since #MeToo? Harvard Business
Review.

Ministry of Law. (2000). 7 ¢ firs frfrew 7w w12,

3000, http://bdlaws.minlaw.gov.bd/act-

835.html

Ministry of Law & Justice. (2013a). Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Act.pdf.
https://www.iitk.ac.in/wc/data/Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Act.pdf
Ministry  of Law &  Justice.
TheCriminalLaw.pdf.
https://www.iitk.ac.infwc/data/TheCriminalLaw
.pdf

MoHR. (2016). Ministry of Human Rights.
https://mohr.gov.pk/Detail/YmJiZJQSMWYtYmE
yYyOOOWFILWFIZWEtYzY10TY1MTg3Y21z
MOLJPA. (2017). Sentencing-and-Execution-
Act-1.pdf. https://www.moljpa.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2018/12/Sentencing-and-
Execution-Act-1.pdf

MOWCA. (2009). English-National-Action-Plan-
to-Prevent-Violence-Against-Women-and-
Children-2013-20251.pdf.
https://mowca.portal.gov.bd/sites/default/files/
files/moweca.portal.gov.bd/page/bcf75e01_95e
3_48ba_bfe4 3d88ea5f593c/English-National-
Action-Plan-to-Prevent-Violence-Against-
Women-and-Children-2013-20251.pdf

(2013b).

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

MOYS. (2020). ufier Gege Fem &, 00s | g1 @
gege 7=, https://moys.gov.np/en/moys/313
National ~ Council of  Bhutan.  (2006).
FinalBICMADill2016Eng.pdf.
https://www.nab.gov.bt/assets/uploads/docs/bi
lls/2016/FinalBICMADbill2016Eng.pdf

National Women Commission, G. of N. (2023).

Tfte Hf FRAT—23%¥Y AT BT,
https://nwc.gov.np/
Nepal Law Commission. (2008). Money

Laundering Prevention Act, 2063—2008.

Nepal Law Commission. (2010). Emergency
Child Mitigation Fund.

Nepal Law Commission. (1997). Nepal Health
Service Act, 2053 (1997) - Nepal Law
Commission.
https://lawcommission.gov.np/en/?p=20230
Nepal Law Commission. (2002). Political-
parties-act-2058-2002.pdf.
https://www.lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2018/10/political-parties-act-
2058-2002.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2014a). The-Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Prevention-Act-
2014-2071.pdf.
https://lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2021/12/The-Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Prevention-Act-
2014-2071.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2014b). The-Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Prevention-Act-
2014-2071.pdf.
https://lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2021/12/The-Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Prevention-Act-
2014-2071.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2017a). The-Act-
Relating-to-Rights-of-Persons-with-Disabilities-
2074-2017.pdf.
https://www.lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2019/07/The-Act-Relating-to-
Rights-of-Persons-with-Disabilities-2074-
2017.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2017b). The-Labor-
Act-2017-2074.pdf.
https://www.lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2021/03/The-Labor-Act-
2017-2074.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2018a). The-Crime-
Victim-Protection-Act-2075-2018.pdf.
https://www.lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2019/07/The-Crime-Victim-
Protection-Act-2075-2018.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2018b). The-Privacy-
Act-2075-2018.pdf.
https://www.lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2019/07/The-Privacy-Act-
2075-2018.pdf

Nepal Law Commission. (2048). Sports
Development Act, 2048 (1992) - Nepal Law
Commission.
https://lawcommission.gov.np/en/?cat=569



Sharma et al. International Journal of MMC DOI: 10.3126/irjmmc.v5i1.63084 108

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Nepal Law Commission. (2058). Political-
parties-act-2058-2002.pdf.
https://www.lawcommission.gov.np/en/wp-
content/uploads/2018/10/political-parties-act-
2058-2002.pdf

Paudel, M. (2023). Perceptions and Legal
Outlooks on Workplace Sexual Harassment in

Global Setting: A Review Based Study. Historical

Journal, 14.
https://doi.org/10.3126/hj.v14i1.52961
Penal Code. (1995). Penal-Coda-

_Amendment_-Act-No-22-0f-1995-E.pdf.
https://citizenslanka.org/wp-
content/uploads/2016/02/Penal-Coda-
_Amendment_-Act-No-22-0f-1995-E.pdf
Royal Government of Bhutan. (2004). PCB
2004.pdf.https://www.rbp.gov.bt/Forms/PCB%2
02004.pdf

The Gazette of India. (2013).
Harassment-at-Workplace-Act.pdf.
https://www.iitk.ac.in/wc/data/Sexual-
Harassment-at-Workplace-Act.pdf

Sexual-

34.

35.

36.

37.

The Gazette of Pakistan. (2010). [THE
PROTECTION  AGAINST  HARASSMENT  OF
WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE ACT 2010].

UN Women Nepal. (2023). UN Women - Asia-
Pacific.
https://asiapacific.unwomen.org/en/countries/
nepal

UNDP. (2023).
Development
https://www.undp.org/nepal

Vodanovich, S. J., & Rupp, D. E. (2022). Title VII
Legal Scenarios for Sex Discrimination and
Sexual Harassment. In S. J. Vodanovich & D. E.
Rupp (Eds.), Employment Discrimination: A
Concise Review of the Legal Landscape (p. 0).
Oxford University Press.
https://doi.org/10.1093/0s0/9780190085421.0
03.0006

United Nations
Programme.

Nepal |



Sharma et al. International Journal of MMC DOI: 10.3126/irjmmc.v5i1.63084 109

TO CITE THIS ARTICLE

Sharma, T., Aryal, B., Pokhrel, M., & Shrestha, R. (2024). Nepal’s legal framework against sexual
harassment: A comprehensive review. International Research Journal of MMC 5(1), 99-109.
https://doi.org/10.3126/ifmmc.v5i1.63084

Submitted: 11 February 2024 Accepted: 25 February 2024 Published: 1 March 2024

COPYRIGHT

©2024 The Author(s). This is an open-access article distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons
Attribution 4.0 International License (CC-BY-NC 4.0), which permits unrestricted use, distribution, and reproduction
inany medium, provided the orignal author and source are  credited.  See
https://creativecomnmons.org/licenses/by-nc/4.0/

International Research Journal of MMC (IRJIMMC)is a peer-reviewed open access journal published by Research
Management Cell, Makawanpur Multiple Campus, Hetauda




